
City of Nevada City 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
THURSDAY, January 21 2016 1:30 PM 

Council Chambers – City Hall 
317 Broad Street - Nevada City, CA 95959 

 

•AUDIENCE MEMBERS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE PLANNING COMMISSION ON ITEMS ON
THE AGENDA: After recognition by the Chair, state your name, address and your comments or questions.
Please direct your remarks to the Commission. So that all interested parties may speak, please limit your
comments to the item under discussion. All citizens will be given the opportunity to speak, consistent with
Constitutional rights. Time limits are at the discretion of the Chair.  •If you challenge the Commission’s
decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else specifically
raised or delivered in writing to the Planning Commission at or prior to the meeting. •Requests for disability-
related modifications or accommodations may be made by contacting the City Planner and should be made at
least 72 hours prior to the meeting.

Mission Statement 
The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town character 

and historical architecture while providing quality public services 
for our current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL Chair Brad Croul, Vice-Chair Pamela Meek, Commissioners Dan Thiem, John Parent, Stuart 
Lauters 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES   December 10, 2015 Special Meeting 

HEARING FROM THE PUBLIC: Comments on items not on the agenda are welcome and are limited to 
three minutes.  However, action or discussion by the Commission may not occur at this time. 

SIGN APPLICATION 
1. 115 Boulder Street – Vision Graphics & Design, Applicant – Five proposed signs to hang from

building overhang for “Century 21 Cornerstone Realty” office;

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 
1. 109 North Pine Street – Epic Wireless c/o,  Applicant –Architectural Review application to

review a proposal for four faux chimney structures for the purpose of screening cellular
communication equipment proposed on the building rooftop

DESIGN RECOMMENDATION 
1. Sugarloaf Draft Master Plan –  A request for feedback and recommendation to the City Council

PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS  
Reports on administratively approved projects – informational only: 
442 South Pine Street -Approved 
108 Grove Street-Under Review 



January 21, 2016 PC 
Page 2 of 2 

 
TRAINING / DISCUSSION:  
City Planner Reports - informational only and no action will be taken 

 

STAFF APPROVALS AND DETERMINATIONS – (for information only):  
222 Reward Street – Remove two Ponderosa Pines 
848 Gold Flat Road – Install backflow prevention device 

 
CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS:   Next Regular Meeting – February 18, 2016 



                                

             City of Nevada City 
 
 
 
TO:    Planning Commission 
 
FROM:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
 
HEARING DATE: January 21, 2016 
 
OWNER: Boulder Street Properties, LLC c/o Stephanie Clard 
 
APPLICANT:  Vision Graphics and Design c/o Justin Lissera 
 
RE: Sign Application –115 Boulder Street – ‘Century 21’ Realty Office  
  
APPLICATION: 
This application has been submitted by the sign manufacturer on behalf of the owner of the Century 21 
Cornerstone Realty office, located at 115 Boulder Street. The applicant is requesting approval of five 
signs, four of which will mainly serve to provide pedestrian direction around the building. The main 
signage will hang in the front of the building and will be visible from the office parking lot. The lot is 
developed with two buildings, both of which are occupied by the Century 21 Cornerstone Realty group. 
The building that is nearest the corner of Nevada Street and Boulder Street was previously approved for 
a 24-square foot sign. It was designed in black with a gold-leaf border and lettering. It features a scroll 
graphic above the lettering that is also provided on the proposed signage. While the code generally 
prohibits a single business entity from having a total aggregate sign area in excess of 24 square feet, 
Section 17.68.080.F allows for a single business entity, having public entrances on two or more sides of 
a building, to treat each such side as a separate entity. Given that each of the two buildings has a 
separate entrance, staff is satisfied that this allowance may be applied for the present circumstance.   
 
All signage will replace existing signage in the same location and with the same dimensions and will 
hang from existing brackets affixed to the building overhang. The aggregate sign area exceeds the 24-
square foot allowance by 0.5 square feet. The applicant has indicated a willingness to reduce the size of 
the signs to meet the requirement. However, the Planning Commission may consider the existing nature 
of the current sign dimensions, as well as the fact that this single building has entrances on the south and 
west sides of the building, invoking the exception outlined in Section17.68.080 as previously discussed. 
 
The details of the sign are as follows: 

Sign Material: Painted MDO (Medium Density Overlay) Sign Board 

Sign Dimensions: Sign 1:  

 

Irregular Shape; 
One-sided,; 
36in x 34in 
(8.5 square feet) 

Signs 2-5:  
 

Rectangular shape; 
One-sided;  
36in x 16in 
(4 square feet each) 

Aggregate Area 24.5 square feet 

Color Pallet: Light Gray Background (Benjamin Moore ‘Winter Solstice’) 

Dark Gray Lettering, Border, Graphic (Benjamin Moore ‘Temptation’) 

Lettering Style ‘Times New Roman’ and ‘Arial’ 
 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 
 



Century 21 Signage 
Jan. 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

FINDINGS: In order to approve this application the following finding must be made: 
 

1. That the exterior appearance of the proposed signage is consistent with the Mother Lode type of 
architecture (17.68.080). 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION: 
After discussion and hearing from the public, the Commission can make a motion to approve the sign 
application, with the following conditions as agreed to by the applicant: 

1. No neon is permitted. 

2. No banners are permitted. 

3. The sign shall be located at least 8 feet from the sidewalk to the bottom of the sign. 

4. Prior to sign installation, written authorization from the property owner shall be provided to the 
city planner. 

5. The decision of the planning commission may be appealed to the city council not later than 
fifteen (15) days after this final action or decision. Any work during this period is at the 
applicant’s own risk. 

 
ATTACHMENT:  

1. Sign 1 Application 
2. Sign 2 Application 
3. Sign 3 Application 
4. Sign 4 Application 
5. Sign 5 Application 
6. Color Swatch 
7. Photograph of the Property 

 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 



Century 21 Signage 
Jan. 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

FINDINGS: In order to approve this application the following finding must be made: 
 

1. That the exterior appearance of the proposed signage is consistent with the Mother Lode type of 
architecture (17.68.080). 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION: 
After discussion and hearing from the public, the Commission can make a motion to approve the sign 
application, with the following conditions as agreed to by the applicant: 

1. No neon is permitted. 

2. No banners are permitted. 

3. The sign shall be located at least 8 feet from the sidewalk to the bottom of the sign. 

4. Prior to sign installation, written authorization from the property owner shall be provided to the 
city planner. 

5. The decision of the planning commission may be appealed to the city council not later than 
fifteen (15) days after this final action or decision. Any work during this period is at the 
applicant’s own risk. 

 
ATTACHMENT:  

1. Sign 1 Application 
2. Sign 2 Application 
3. Sign 3 Application 
4. Sign 4 Application 
5. Sign 5 Application 
6. Color Swatch 
7. Photograph of the Property 

 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 



Attachment 1.2



Attachment 1.3



Attachment 2.1



Attachment 2.2



Attachment 2.3



Attachment 3.1



Attachment 3.2



Attachment 3.3



Attachment 4.1



Attachment 4.2



Attachment 4.3



Attachment 5.1



Attachment 5.2



Attachment 5.3



Attachment 6



Sign 5 
Sign 2 

Sign 4 

Sign 1 

Sign 3 

Attachment 7



                               City of Nevada City 
 
 
 
TO:    Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
 
HEARING DATE:  January 21, 2016 
 
APPLICANT:  Epic Wireless Wireless, Inc (for Verizon Wireless) 
 
OWNER: Kenneth & Kay Baker (Trste), Gary & Patricia Tintle (Trste); County of Nevada 
 
RE: Architectural Review Application for a Proposed Rooftop-mounted Antennae at 109 

North Pine Street (Friar Tucks, Yobobo, Off-Broad Street) 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 

1. Approve the architectural review application for eight (8) cellular antennas, and  a 4-foot diameter 
microwave dish, affixed to various points of the rooftop of 109 North Pine Street, and screened 
with  faux “stealth chimney” fixtures. 
 

NOTE: Application has been made for the Conditional Use Permit component of this project proposal, 
further discussed below. At this time, Planning Commission action is only being requested for the 
Architectural Review component of the application.  
 
SITE SPECIFICATIONS 
Lot Size 6,098 square feet (0.14 ac.) 

Zoning GB-HD (General Business – Historical District) 

Setbacks Front yard: 30-feet, Rear Yard: 25-feet, Interior side yards: 5-feet 

Building Height  40-feet 

Historical District Inside 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 
Staff has determined that it may best serve the applicant, as well as staff, to receive direction regarding 
Architectural Review prior to the review of the Conditional Use Permit. An Initial Distribution Notice has 
been sent out for agency comment on the Use Permit proposal and no delay in Use Permit processing is 
anticipated by performing architectural review in advance of the Use Permit hearing. Obtaining direction in 
this manner will facilitate a more comprehensive discussion for the Aesthetic and Land Use sections of the 
Initial Study that will be prepared pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and used 
to make a recommendation for environmental determination, if not determined to be exempt. Due to the 
City’s sensitivity to exterior alterations within the Historic District, staff has determined that this approach 
will benefit the applicant insomuch that it will allow time to make design changes, if necessary, prior to 
taking the Use Permit to public hearing. If the current design is approved, or if direction can be provided to 
the applicant for minor re-design, then staff will proceed in the normal timeline provided for discretionary 
Conditional Use Permits. Otherwise, the applicant will have the option of re-designing the project in an 

 
City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

 



Complete Wireless ARC 
Jan. 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 
 
effort to meet aesthetic sensibilities associated with the Historical District and in an effort to be compatible 
with Motherlode Architecture.  
 
REGULATORY CONSIDERATION 
The General Business District is intended to provide for the sale of a variety of commodities, performance 
of services, tourist oriented sales, and other types of general enterprise. Public and quasi-public uses, 
defined as including public utility distribution facilities and communication equipment buildings, are 
permitted with a Conditional Use Permit. Architectural Review is required for any exterior alteration of a 
structure. The applicant has submitted applications for both Architectural Review and for a Conditional Use 
Permit. The Use Permit proposal has been distributed for agency review and staff is anticipating comments 
soon. 
 
The City Council has declared the area defined as the Historical District to be one of great historical 
interest and aesthetic value. The preservation of this area has been determined to be essential to the 
economic and cultural life of the city. As such, all buildings within said district which are altered as to their 
exterior appearance within public view are required to do so in a manner which substantially conforms with 
the Motherlode type of architecture pursuant to Zoning Ordinance Section 17.68.070. Motherlode 
Architecture is defined as that type of architecture generally used in the Motherlode region of the state of 
California during the period from 1849 to 1900. The determination of whether a building conforms to 
Motherlode Architecture shall include all factors which affect the external appearance of the building, 
including without limitation, architectural elevations, building materials, colors, finishes, lighting, 
ornamental devices and signs.  
 
Zoning Ordinance Section 17.80.020 requires that satellite and antenna installation be subject to 
architectural review and encourages their placement to areas that are not generally visible form public 
streets. Whenever visible placement of such facilities is technically required in order to receive 
communication signals, the installation shall be screened in a manner approved during architectural review.   
  
BUILDING HISTORY 
The original structure at the subject location was constructed in the 1880s with a second story added in 
1912. The 1898 Sanborn Map identifies the structure as primarily constructed of brick. The building was 
listed as a contributing building for the Historical District’s inclusion in the National Register of Historic 
Places. The entire structure was destroyed by fire in March 2002. Due to its contributing status, the City 
Council determined that reconstruction should occur in a manner that replicated the previous structure as 
nearly as possible. The Planning Commission approved the reconstruction of the building on April 25, 
2002. The present building closely resembles the original building architecture, including a brick face and 
roof parapet, along with iron trim details.  
 
SITE SELECTION 
The applicant explored the possibility of locating new towers on several of the surrounding hilltops and 
decided that these alternatives would likely face opposition for aesthetic reasons. It was their determination 
that a smaller, roof-mounted facility would limit the visual impact in this service area while providing the 
required coverage and capacity objectives. The applicant also looked at various other building rooftops in 
the area including the County Courthouse. These structures were eliminated as potential antenna sites due 
to lack of roof space, lack of response from landlords, unacceptable equipment platforms for the proposed 
Verizon equipment, etc. It is important to note that the proposed project does not provide co-location 
opportunity for multiple carriers. If another carrier was to propose antennae in the city’s historical district, 
that carrier would have to find a completely new location to install communication equipment. The current 
proposal has potential to set precedence and provide an example for the manner in which the city prefers to 
see these types of improvements installed within the historical district. 
 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 



Complete Wireless ARC 
Jan. 21, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 
 
PROJECT PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to install eight (8) cellular antennas mounted on four (4) pipe mounts, along 
with a 4-foot diameter microwave dish, affixed to various points of the rooftop of 109 North Pine Street. 
Equipment cabinets serving the communication facility will be located on the second floor, inside the 
existing building. The applicant is proposing to screen the antennas and microwave dish with four faux 
“stealth chimney” fixtures, which allow radio waves to have an unobstructed pathway between user devices 
and antennae. Other equipment associated with the antennae, including a standby generator and HVAC 
condenser, are proposed with low enough profiles to be screened by the building’s existing parapet from 
most public view sheds. 
 
These faux chimney panels will be constructed of Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic (FRP), and is advertised by 
the manufacturer as being a material designed in a manner that does not corrode, rot, rust, or warp. The 
panels are factory coated with an industrial grade urethane paint that may be touched-up or repainted with 
latex paints (See attachment 3, letter from STEALTH). The applicant is proposing paint and texture that 
mimics the brick face of the building. The top of the chimney structures will reach 50-feet above the 
ground elevation which amounts to a range between 3.5-feet and 9.5-feet above the height of the building 
parapet, depending on the elevation. The stealth chimney fixtures will be visible from several public 
vantage points within downtown Nevada City (see attachment 4&5, photo simulations). The height 
limitation in the General Business District is 40-feet. Zoning Ordinance Section 17.84.030 indicates that 
these height limits do not apply to radio transmission towers, which staff has determined to be applicable to 
the proposed antennae. Access to the lease area is proposed from the interior of the building and each 
“chimney” includes an access panel placed in a manner that is not visible from public view sheds. The 
equipment lease area is proposed within a third story room in the existing structure. The facility will be 
unmanned and will require only occasional trips for maintenance purposes. 
 
RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS 
 
1. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant must obtain approval for a Conditional Use Permit 

pursuant to Zoning Ordinance, Section 17.88. 
 

2. A Planning Commissioner(s) shall be appointed to act as liaison with the project applicant and to 
review and approve any minor modifications to the project.  If the changes are beyond the scope of the 
liaison, the matter shall be referred to the Planning Commission for their approval.  The Liaison will 
provide periodic status reports of the project to the Commission  

 
3. A regular maintenance schedule shall be established in order to repair and provide paint touch-up to the 

faux chimney structures as necessary to ensure compatibility with the building architecture. A copy of 
the maintenance schedule shall be submitted to the Planning Department prior to issuance of any 
building permits.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Architectural Review Application 
2. Construction Plans (site plan and elevations) 
3. STEALTH letter to Epic Wireless 
4. Photo Simulations (w/ faux chimney) 
5. Photo Simulations (w/o faux chimney) 
 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 





06/15/15
100% ZD Submittal

H.L.H.

278749

B.K.W.

20130974364

A 12/10/14 90% ZD Submittal

255 Parkshore Drive
Folsom, California 94630

PREPARED FOR

Pl
ot

 D
at

e:
6/

15
/2

01
5 

3:
57

:1
2 

PM
   

 F
ile

 N
am

eT
:\

20
14

\T
-1

40
02

 - 
Ep

ic
 W

ire
le

ss
 V

ZW
\T

-1
40

02
-3

5_
Hi

st
or

ic
 N

ev
ad

a 
C

ity
_2

78
74

9\
27

87
49

 H
ist

or
ic

 N
ev

ad
a 

C
ity

\S
he

et
s\

Tit
le

 S
he

et
.d

w
g

   
 P

lo
tte

d
 B

y:
Br

ia
n 

W
in

slo
w

REV DESCRIPTIONDATE

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

LOCATION NO:

IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY
PERSON, UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING

UNDER THE DIRECTION OF A LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER, TO ALTER THIS

DOCUMENT.

Vendor:

Project Address:

Licensor:

Issued For:

Architect:

PROJECT NO:

8700 Auburn Folsom Road, Suite 400
Granite Bay, California 95746

14
00

2-
35

B 01/14/15 95% ZD Submittal

C 06/15/15 100% ZD Submittal

TITLE SHEET

A-0

SHEET INDEX PROJECT INFORMATION

TITLE SHEETA-0

OVERALL SITE PLAN A-1

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT TEAM

GENERAL CONTRACTOR NOTES

DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS
THESE DRAWINGS ARE FORMATTED TO BE FULL SIZE AT 24" x 36". CONTRACTOR
SHALL VERIFY ALL PLANS AND EXISTING DIMENSIONS AND CONDITIONS ON
THE JOBSITE AND SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT/ENGINEER IN
WRITING OF ANY DISCREPANCIES BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK OR
MATERIAL ORDERS OR BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SAME.

DIRECTIONS FROM VERIZON WIRELESS

Architect / Engineer:
BORGES ARCHITECTURAL GROUP, INC.
1478 STONE POINT DRIVE, SUITE 350
ROSEVILLE, CA 95661
contact: BRIAN K. WINSLOW
email: brian@borgesarch.com
ph: (916) 782-7200

Construction Mgr.:
EPIC WIRELESS GROUP, INC.
8700 AUBURN FOLSOM ROAD, SUITE 400
GRANITE BAY, CA 95746
contact: PETE MANAS
email: pete.manas@epicwireless.net
ph: (530) 383-5957

HANDICAP REQUIREMENTS

OCCUPANCY AND CONSTRUCTION TYPE

OCCUPANCY :  U (UNMANNED)

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: V-B

SITE ELEVATIONS A-4.1

A-5

Structural Engineer:
NORM SCHEEL STRUCTURAL ENGINEER
5022 SUNRISE BLVD
FAIR OAKS, CA 95628
contact: NORM SCHEEL
email: norm@nsse.com
ph: (916) 536-9585

Survey:
Geil Engineering
1226 High Street
Auburn, CA 95603
contact: NEIL ROHDE
ph: (530) 885-0426

RF Engineer:
VERIZON WIRELESS
255 PARKSHORE DRIVE
FOLSOM, CA 95630
contact: ERIC MALANA
email: eric.malana@verizonwireless.com
ph: (916) 357-2586

SITE SURVEYC-1

ENLARGED ROOF PLANA-2.2
EQUIPMENT & ANTENNA LAYOUTSA-3

SPECIAL INSPECTIONS

REV

C

GENERATOR SPECS

DIRECTIONS FROM VERIZON WIRELESS's OFFICE AT 255 PARKSHORE DRIVE, FOLSOM , CA

PROJECT : Historic Nevada City - New Build

1. Head northeast on Parkshore Dr toward Coolidge Dr 

2. Turn left onto Coolidge Dr 

3. Take the 3rd left onto Glenn Dr

4. Turn right onto Folsom Blvd

5.  Continue onto Folsom-Auburn Rd

6.  Continue onto Auburn Folsom Rd

7.  Turn left onto Cavitt Stallman Rd

8.  Take the 1st right onto Laird Rd

9.  Turn right onto Horseshoe Bar Rd

10. Take the 1st left to stay on Horseshoe Bar Rd

11. Turn right to merge onto I-80 E

12. Merge onto I-80 E

13. Take the CA-49 exit toward Grass Valley/Placerville

14. Turn left onto CA-193 W/CA-49 N/Grass Valley Hwy

15. Take the Broad Street exit

16. Turn left onto Broad St

17. Take the 2nd right onto N Pine St

Destination will be on the left

CODE COMPLIANCE

Property Information:
Site Name: HISTORIC NEVADA CITY

Site Number: 278749

Search Ring:  HISTORIC NEVADA CITY

Site Address: 109 NORTH PINE ST
                       NEVADA CITY, CA 95959

A.P.N. Number: 05-397-01-000

Zoning: COMMERICAL - HISTORIC DISTRICT

Current Use: A-3, B-1

Jurisdiction: NEVADA CITY

VICINITY MAP

Power Agency:
PG&E
77 Beale Street, 24th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94105
ph: (415) 973-8200

Telephone Agency:
AT&T California
525 MARKET STREETSAN FRANCISCO,
CA 94105
ph: (800) 310-2355

Property Owner:
COUNTY OF NEVADA
109 NORTH PINE STREET
NEVADA CITY, CA 95959

SITE ELEVATIONS A-4.2

          NEW SITE BUILD UNMANNED TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY TO BE LOCATED 
INSIDE AND ON TOP OF AN EXISTING STRUCTURE:

1. (P) (4) STEALTH CHIMNEYS INSTALLED ON (E) ROOF DECK
2. ADD (2) PANEL ANTENNAS PER SECTOR (4 SECTORS, 8 ANTENNAS TOTAL)
3. ADD (3) RRUS12 WITH A2 MODULE BEHIND PER SECTOR, FOR A TOTAL OF (12)

MOUNTED BEHIND ANTENNAS.
4. ADD (1) 4' MICROWAVE DISH
5. PLACE A 30Kw GENERAC NATURAL GAS STAND-BY GENERATOR ON SPRING

VIBRATION ISOLATORS ON (E) ROOFTOP
6. ADD (4) VERIZON WIRELESS EQUIPMENT CABINETS IN (P) EQUIPMENT ROOM
7. ADD (P) METER, DISCONNECT, & TELCO BOARD IN (P) EQUIPMENT ROOM
8. ADD (4) SURGE SUPPRESSORS, (2) MOUNTED AT (P) ANTENNAS, (2) INSIDE (P)

EQUIPMENT ROOM
9. ADD (2) HYBRID FIBER CABLES
10. PLACE (2) GPS ANTENNAS MOUNTED BEHIND (P) FRP STEALTH SCREEN

109 NORTH PINE ST

NEVADA CITY, CA 95959

SITE

POST INSTALLED CONCRETE WEDGE ANCHORS

ALL WORK AND MATERIALS SHALL BE PERFORMED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE CURRENT EDITIONS OF THE FOLLOWING CODES AS ADOPTED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNING
AUTHORITIES. NOTHING IN THESE PLANS IS TO BE CONSTRUED TO PERMIT WORK NOT
CONFORMING TO THESE CODES.

FLOOR PLANSA-2.1
Agent for Applicant, Planning and
Zoning Mgr:
EPIC WIRELESS GROUP, INC.
8700 AUBURN FOLSOM ROAD, SUITE 400
GRANITE BAY, CA 95746
contact: MARK LOBAUGH
email: mark.lobaugh@epicwireless.net
ph: (916) 203-4067

DISCIPLINE: SIGNATURE: DATE:

SITE ACQUISITION:

CONSTRUCTION:

RF:

MICROWAVE:

TELCO:

EQUIPMENT:

WO ADMINISTRATOR:

PROJECT ADMINISTRATOR:

VERIZON SIGNATURE BLOCK

C

C

C
C
C
C

C

C
A-6 MICROWAVE DISH SPECS C

PROJECT NO : 20130974364

LOCATION NO: 278749

AREA: West

REGION: Northern California / Nevada

MARKET: Sacramento / Reno (NV)

JURISDICTION: Nevada City

FACILITY IS UNMANNED AND NOT FOR HUMAN HABITATION, ACCESSIBILITY ACCESS AND
REQUIREMENTS ARE NOT REQUIRED, IN ACCORDANCE WITH CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE,
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24, PART 2, VOLUME 1, CHAPTER 11B, DIVISION 2, SECTION
11B-203.5

1) 2013 CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, CHAPTER 10, PART 1, TITLE 24 CODE OF
REGULATIONS

2) 2013 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE (CBC) WITH CALIFORNIA AMENDMENTS, BASED ON
THE 2012 IBC (PART 2, VOL 1-2)

3) 2013 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE (CRC) WITH APPENDIX H, PATIO COVERS, BASED
ON THE 2012 IRC (PART 2.5)

4) 2013 CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDINGS STANDARDS CODE (CALGREEN) (PART 11)
(AFFECTED ENERGY PROVISIONS ONLY)

5) 2013 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE (CFC), BASED ON THE 2012 IFC, WITH CALIFORNIA
AMENDMENTS (PART 9)

6) 2013 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE (CMC), BASED ON THE 2012 UMC (PART 4)

7) 2013 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE (CPC), BASED ON THE 2012 UPC (PART 5)

8) 2013 CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE (CEC) WITH CALIFORNIA AMENDMENTS, BASED
ON THE 2011 NEC (PART 3)

9) 2013 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE (CEC)

10) ANSI / EIA-TIA-222-G

11) 2012 NFPA 101, LIFE SAFETY CODE

12) 2013 NFPA 72, NATIONAL FIRE ALARM CODE

13) 2013 NFPA 13, FIRE SPRINKLER CODE





06/15/15
100% ZD Submittal

H.L.H.

278749

B.K.W.

20130974364

A 12/10/14 90% ZD Submittal

255 Parkshore Drive
Folsom, California 94630

PREPARED FOR

Pl
ot

 D
at

e:
6/

15
/2

01
5 

4:
00

:1
7 

PM
   

 F
ile

 N
am

eT
:\

20
14

\T
-1

40
02

 - 
Ep

ic
 W

ire
le

ss
 V

ZW
\T

-1
40

02
-3

5_
Hi

st
or

ic
 N

ev
ad

a 
C

ity
_2

78
74

9\
27

87
49

 H
ist

or
ic

 N
ev

ad
a 

C
ity

\S
he

et
s\

A
-1

 O
ve

ra
ll S

ite
 P

la
n.

d
w

g
   

 P
lo

tte
d

 B
y:

Br
ia

n 
W

in
slo

w

REV DESCRIPTIONDATE

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

LOCATION NO:

IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY
PERSON, UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING

UNDER THE DIRECTION OF A LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER, TO ALTER THIS

DOCUMENT.

Vendor:

Project Address:

Licensor:

Issued For:

Architect:

PROJECT NO:

8700 Auburn Folsom Road, Suite 400
Granite Bay, California 95746

14
00

2-
35

B 01/14/15 95% ZD Submittal

C 06/15/15 100% ZD Submittal

OVERALL
SITE PLAN

A-1

16' 8' 16' 32'0

3/32"=1'-0"



06/15/15
100% ZD Submittal

H.L.H.

278749

B.K.W.

20130974364

A 12/10/14 90% ZD Submittal

255 Parkshore Drive
Folsom, California 94630

PREPARED FOR

Pl
ot

 D
at

e:
6/

15
/2

01
5 

4:
01

:5
3 

PM
   

 F
ile

 N
am

eT
:\

20
14

\T
-1

40
02

 - 
Ep

ic
 W

ire
le

ss
 V

ZW
\T

-1
40

02
-3

5_
Hi

st
or

ic
 N

ev
ad

a 
C

ity
_2

78
74

9\
27

87
49

 H
ist

or
ic

 N
ev

ad
a 

C
ity

\S
he

et
s\

A
-2

.1
 F

lo
or

 P
la

ns
.d

w
g

   
 P

lo
tte

d
 B

y:
Br

ia
n 

W
in

slo
w

REV DESCRIPTIONDATE

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

LOCATION NO:

IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY
PERSON, UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING

UNDER THE DIRECTION OF A LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER, TO ALTER THIS

DOCUMENT.

Vendor:

Project Address:

Licensor:

Issued For:

Architect:

PROJECT NO:

8700 Auburn Folsom Road, Suite 400
Granite Bay, California 95746

14
00

2-
35

B 01/14/15 95% ZD Submittal

C 06/15/15 100% ZD Submittal

FLOOR
PLANS

A-2.1

8' 4' 8' 16'

1/8"=1'-0"

008' 4' 8' 16'

1/8"=1'-0"

00



06/15/15
100% ZD Submittal

H.L.H.

278749

B.K.W.

20130974364

A 12/10/14 90% ZD Submittal

255 Parkshore Drive
Folsom, California 94630

PREPARED FOR

Pl
ot

 D
at

e:
6/

15
/2

01
5 

4:
02

:2
9 

PM
   

 F
ile

 N
am

eT
:\

20
14

\T
-1

40
02

 - 
Ep

ic
 W

ire
le

ss
 V

ZW
\T

-1
40

02
-3

5_
Hi

st
or

ic
 N

ev
ad

a 
C

ity
_2

78
74

9\
27

87
49

 H
ist

or
ic

 N
ev

ad
a 

C
ity

\S
he

et
s\

A
-2

.2
  E

nl
ar

ge
d

 S
ite

 P
la

n.
d

w
g

   
 P

lo
tte

d
 B

y:
Br

ia
n 

W
in

slo
w

REV DESCRIPTIONDATE

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

LOCATION NO:

IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY
PERSON, UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING

UNDER THE DIRECTION OF A LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER, TO ALTER THIS

DOCUMENT.

Vendor:

Project Address:

Licensor:

Issued For:

Architect:

PROJECT NO:

8700 Auburn Folsom Road, Suite 400
Granite Bay, California 95746

14
00

2-
35

B 01/14/15 95% ZD Submittal

C 06/15/15 100% ZD Submittal

ENLARGED
ROOF PLAN

A-2.2

8' 4' 8' 16'0

3/16"=1'-0"



17 ENLARGED EQUIPMENT PLAN

(P) VERIZON WIRELESS
HVAC UNIT ABOVE

(P) VERIZON WIRELESS
RAYCAP DC SURGE
SUPPRESSOR, TYP. OF (2)

(P) VERIZON WIRELESS
SUB PANEL W/ (P)

DISCONNECT

(P) 1HR. RATED WALL
AROUND (P) VERIZON
WIRELESS EQUIPMENT ROOM

(P) VERIZON WIRELESS
LTE#1 (E) BELOW

(E) DOOR ACCESS TO
(P) VERIZON WIRELESS
EQUIPMENT ROOM

10'-3"

13
'-5

"

14
'-1

"

10'-11"

(P) VERIZON WIRELESS
MISC (D)

(P) VERIZON WIRELESS
TELCO BOARD

(P) VERIZON WIRELESS
C&D 6WX4H 24ATO9P
480Ah W/ GE NE-S (-48V) (I)

(P) VERIZON WIRELESS
C&D 4WX6H 24ATO9P
480Ah (J)

6"

1'
-2

"

6'
-5

"

5'
-9

"

8"

8"

(P) VERIZON WIRELESS
HVAC UNIT ABOVE 06/15/15

100% ZD Submittal

H.L.H.

278749

B.K.W.

20130974364

A 12/10/14 90% ZD Submittal

255 Parkshore Drive
Folsom, California 94630

PREPARED FOR

Pl
ot

 D
at

e:
6/

15
/2

01
5 

4:
03

:0
9 

PM
   

 F
ile

 N
am

eT
:\

20
14

\T
-1

40
02

 - 
Ep

ic
 W

ire
le

ss
 V

ZW
\T

-1
40

02
-3

5_
Hi

st
or

ic
 N

ev
ad

a 
C

ity
_2

78
74

9\
27

87
49

 H
ist

or
ic

 N
ev

ad
a 

C
ity

\S
he

et
s\

A
-3

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t &

 A
nt

en
na

 L
ay

ou
ts

.d
w

g
   

 P
lo

tte
d

 B
y:

Br
ia

n 
W

in
slo

w

REV DESCRIPTIONDATE

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

LOCATION NO:

IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY
PERSON, UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING

UNDER THE DIRECTION OF A LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER, TO ALTER THIS

DOCUMENT.

Vendor:

Project Address:

Licensor:

Issued For:

Architect:

PROJECT NO:

8700 Auburn Folsom Road, Suite 400
Granite Bay, California 95746

14
00

2-
35

B 01/14/15 95% ZD Submittal

C 06/15/15 100% ZD Submittal

EQUIPMENT &
ANTENNA LAYOUTS

A-3

2' 1' 2' 4'0

3/4"=1'-0"

2' 1' 2' 4'0

3/4"=1'-0"

2' 1' 2' 4'0

3/4"=1'-0"



06/15/15
100% ZD Submittal

H.L.H.

278749

B.K.W.

20130974364

A 12/10/14 90% ZD Submittal

255 Parkshore Drive
Folsom, California 94630

PREPARED FOR

Pl
ot

 D
at

e:
6/

15
/2

01
5 

4:
03

:4
7 

PM
   

 F
ile

 N
am

eT
:\

20
14

\T
-1

40
02

 - 
Ep

ic
 W

ire
le

ss
 V

ZW
\T

-1
40

02
-3

5_
Hi

st
or

ic
 N

ev
ad

a 
C

ity
_2

78
74

9\
27

87
49

 H
ist

or
ic

 N
ev

ad
a 

C
ity

\S
he

et
s\

A
-4

.1
 E

le
va

tio
ns

.d
w

g
   

 P
lo

tte
d

 B
y:

Br
ia

n 
W

in
slo

w

REV DESCRIPTIONDATE

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

LOCATION NO:

IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY
PERSON, UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING

UNDER THE DIRECTION OF A LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER, TO ALTER THIS

DOCUMENT.

Vendor:

Project Address:

Licensor:

Issued For:

Architect:

PROJECT NO:

8700 Auburn Folsom Road, Suite 400
Granite Bay, California 95746

14
00

2-
35

B 01/14/15 95% ZD Submittal

C 06/15/15 100% ZD Submittal

ELEVATIONS

A-4.1



06/15/15
100% ZD Submittal

H.L.H.

278749

B.K.W.

20130974364

A 12/10/14 90% ZD Submittal

255 Parkshore Drive
Folsom, California 94630

PREPARED FOR

Pl
ot

 D
at

e:
6/

15
/2

01
5 

4:
05

:4
3 

PM
   

 F
ile

 N
am

eT
:\

20
14

\T
-1

40
02

 - 
Ep

ic
 W

ire
le

ss
 V

ZW
\T

-1
40

02
-3

5_
Hi

st
or

ic
 N

ev
ad

a 
C

ity
_2

78
74

9\
27

87
49

 H
ist

or
ic

 N
ev

ad
a 

C
ity

\S
he

et
s\

A
-4

.2
 E

le
va

tio
ns

.d
w

g
   

 P
lo

tte
d

 B
y:

Br
ia

n 
W

in
slo

w

REV DESCRIPTIONDATE

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

LOCATION NO:

IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY
PERSON, UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING

UNDER THE DIRECTION OF A LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER, TO ALTER THIS

DOCUMENT.

Vendor:

Project Address:

Licensor:

Issued For:

Architect:

PROJECT NO:

8700 Auburn Folsom Road, Suite 400
Granite Bay, California 95746

14
00

2-
35

B 01/14/15 95% ZD Submittal

C 06/15/15 100% ZD Submittal

ELEVATIONS

A-4.2



17 PROPANE GENERATOR SPEC

STUB-UP AREA DETAILED VIEW

NOTE:

1.  CONTROL PANEL, (OPTIONAL BATTERY CHARGER INSIDE)

2.  120V, 20A GFCI & 250V, 15A OUTLET (OPTIONAL)

3. CONNECTION POINTS FOR CONTROL WIRES PROVIDED IN THE LOW VOLTAGE
CONNECTION BOX (USE LOW VOLTAGE STUB UP AREA)

4.  BATTERY (12 VOLT NEGATIVE GROUND SYSTEM)

5.  MAIN LINE CIRCUIT BREAKER (MLCB), AC LOAD LEADS CONNECT DIRECTLY TO MLCB.
(MLCB HEIGHT MAY VARY WITH CB SELECTION)

6.  CENTER OF GRAVITY AND WEIGHT MAY SHIFT SLIGHTLY DUE TO UNIT OPTIONS

7. DOORS MUST BE ABLE TO OPEN AT LEAST 90Á TO BE REMOVED

8. ENGINE SERVICE CONNECTIONS:
      INLET L/P GAS = 1-1/4" NPT COUPLING
      INLET L/P LIQUID = 1/4" NPT COUPLING
      INLET NATURAL GAS = 1-1/4" NPT COUPLING
      OIL DRAIN = 1/2" NPT COUPLING
      EXHAUST OUTLET = 3.0" I.D.

9. AUXILIARY AC CONNECTION FOR UNIT OPTIONS ARE LOCATED IN HIGH
VOLTAGECONNECTION BOX, UNLESS AN OPTIONAL LOAD CENTER IS INSTALLED

10. EPA AIR QUALITY REGULATIONS REQUIRE THE CATALYST TO REMAIN MOUNTEDIN THE
FACTORY INSTALLED POSITION OR WITHIN THE SPECIFIED MOUNTING POSITION
DETAILED ON THIS DRAWING UNDER PENALTY OF FEDERAL LAW

11. BLOCK HEATER

12. BOTTOM OF GENERATOR SET MUST BE CLOSED TO PREVENT PEST INTRUSION AND
RECIRULATION OF DISCHARGE AIR AND/OR IMPROPER COOLING AIR FLOW.

13. GENERATOR SET MUST BE INSTALLED SUCH THAT DISCHARGE AIR IS NOT
RECIRCULATED.

14. CIRCUIT BREAKER
   -AC LOAD LEADS CONNECT DIRECTLY TO BOTTOM OF BREAKER.
   -REFER TO LUG SIZING CHART AVAILABLE ON GEN-CONNECT.

LOW VOLTAGE STUB-UP
AREA, NOTE (3)

REAR VIEWLEFT SIDE VIEW

LOAD CENTER (DUAL
CONNECTION BOX) (OPTIONAL)

NOTE 4

OPTIONAL SECONDARY HIGH
VOLTAGE CONNECTION BOX

NOTE 4

R445.8 [R17.6], TYP (4)
PLACES, NOTE (7)

R 424.1 [R16.7], TYP. (4)
PLACES, NOTE (7)

293.7
[11.6]

90
6.

0
[3

5.
7]

M
O

UN
TIN

G
HO

LE
S

18
2.

9
[7

.2
]

Ï16.66 [Ï0.7] MOUNTING
HOLES,(10) PLACES

99.0
[3.9]
TYP.

540.5
[21.3]
TYP.

1081.0
[42.6]
TYP.

2162.0
[85.1]
TYP.

TOP OR PLAN VIEW

1027.8
[40.5]

ENCLOSURE WIDTH

17
21

.5
[6

7.
8]

O
V

ER
A

LL
 H

EI
G

HT

940.1
[37.0]

1015.9
[40.0]

BASEFRAME WIDTH

NOTE 1

NEUTRAL TERMINAL BLOCK

HIGH VOLTAGE CONNECTION
BOX, NOTE (9)

HIGH VOLTAGE CONNECTION
BOX, NOTE (9)

NOTE (2) (OPTIONAL)

LIFTING EYE, (4) PLACES, 40x60
SLOT [1.57x2.361]

NOTE 8

OUTLET LOCATION WHEN EQUIPPED
W/ LOAD CENTER, NOTE (2)

2839.7
[111.8]

OVERALL ENCLOSURE LENGTH448.9
[17.7]

SG50, SG60 & SG70 6.8.
LITER DIRECT DRIVE

NATURALLY ASPIRATED
LEVEL 2 ACUSTIC ENCLOSURE

14
7.

6
[5

.8
]

LP
 L

IQ
UI

D
 IN

LE
T

12
5.

6
[4

.9
]

N
A

TU
RA

L 
G

A
S 

/
O

PP
O

SI
TE

 S
ID

E

10
1.

6
[4

.0
]

O
IL

 D
RA

IN
O

PP
O

SI
TE

 S
ID

E

2360.0 [92.9]
BASEFRAME LENGTH

1704.0 [67.1]
NATURAL GAS / LP VAPOR INLET, NOTE(8)

1331.0 [52.4]
LP LIQUID INLET, NOTE (8)

1103.0 [43.4]
C.O.G., NOTE (6)

1020.5 [40.5]
OIL DRAIN PLUG

OPPOSITE SIDE, NOTE (8)

1625.0
[64.0]

10
32

.5
[4

0.
7]

O
V

ER
A

LL
 C

O
N

N
EC

TIO
N

BO
X 

HE
IG

HT

66
5.

1
[2

6.
2]

M
LC

B
HE

IG
HT

, N
O

TE
 (5

)

67
3.

6
[2

6.
5]

LO
W

 V
O

LT
A

G
E

ST
UB

-U
P

20
4.

0
[8

.0
]

PRIMARY CB CONNECTION
BOX OPENING

PRIMARY HIGH VOLTAGE
STUB-UP AREA

SECONDARY HIGH
VOLTAGE STUB-UP AREA

SECONDARY CB CONNECTION
BOX OPENING (OPTIONAL

WEIGHT DATA
OPEN SET: 796KG [1756 LBS]
STEEL ENCL: 236KG [520 LBS]
ALUMINUM ENCL: 81KG [179 LBS]
(SEE NOTE 8)

RECOMMENDED ELECTRICAL STUB-UPS
(SEE DETAILED VIEW & TOP VIEW)

(HIGH VOLTAGE STUB UP)  AC LOAD LEAD CONDUIT FOR PERMANENT  MAGNET
EXCITATION CONNECTION BOX

(LOW VOLTAGE STUB UP) TWO  DIFFERENT LOCATIONS DEPENDING ON  MOUNT
LOCATION. -SURFACE MOUNT -BASETANK MOUNT

TO
 B

O
TT

O
M

 O
F

 B
O

X

GENERATOR
SPECS

A-5

06/15/15
100% ZD Submittal

H.L.H.

278749

B.K.W.

20130974364

A 12/10/14 90% ZD Submittal

255 Parkshore Drive
Folsom, California 94630

PREPARED FOR

Pl
ot

 D
at

e:
6/

15
/2

01
5 

4:
06

:1
8 

PM
   

 F
ile

 N
am

eT
:\

20
14

\T
-1

40
02

 - 
Ep

ic
 W

ire
le

ss
 V

ZW
\T

-1
40

02
-3

5_
Hi

st
or

ic
 N

ev
ad

a 
C

ity
_2

78
74

9\
27

87
49

 H
ist

or
ic

 N
ev

ad
a 

C
ity

\S
he

et
s\

A
-5

 G
en

er
at

or
 S

pe
cs

.d
w

g
   

 P
lo

tte
d

 B
y:

Br
ia

n 
W

in
slo

w

REV DESCRIPTIONDATE

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

LOCATION NO:

IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY
PERSON, UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING

UNDER THE DIRECTION OF A LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER, TO ALTER THIS

DOCUMENT.

Vendor:

Project Address:

Licensor:

Issued For:

Architect:

PROJECT NO:

8700 Auburn Folsom Road, Suite 400
Granite Bay, California 95746

14
00

2-
35

No. C11535

B 01/14/15 95% ZD Submittal

C 06/15/15 100% ZD Submittal



MICROWAVE
DISH SPECS

A-6

06/15/15
100% ZD Submittal

H.L.H.

278749

B.K.W.

20130974364

A 12/10/14 90% ZD Submittal

255 Parkshore Drive
Folsom, California 94630

PREPARED FOR

Pl
ot

 D
at

e:
6/

15
/2

01
5 

4:
06

:5
6 

PM
   

 F
ile

 N
am

eT
:\

20
14

\T
-1

40
02

 - 
Ep

ic
 W

ire
le

ss
 V

ZW
\T

-1
40

02
-3

5_
Hi

st
or

ic
 N

ev
ad

a 
C

ity
_2

78
74

9\
27

87
49

 H
ist

or
ic

 N
ev

ad
a 

C
ity

\S
he

et
s\

M
ic

ro
w

av
e 

D
ish

 S
pe

cs
.d

w
g

   
 P

lo
tte

d
 B

y:
Br

ia
n 

W
in

slo
w

REV DESCRIPTIONDATE

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

LOCATION NO:

IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY
PERSON, UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING

UNDER THE DIRECTION OF A LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER, TO ALTER THIS

DOCUMENT.

Vendor:

Project Address:

Licensor:

Issued For:

Architect:

PROJECT NO:

8700 Auburn Folsom Road, Suite 400
Granite Bay, California 95746

14
00

2-
35

No. C11535

B 01/14/15 95% ZD Submittal

C 06/15/15 100% ZD Submittal



 

 

Mark Lobaugh 
Epic Wireless, Inc. 
8700 Auburn Folsom Road, suite 400 
Granite Bay, CA. 95746 
 
       

 
Dear Mark, 
 
New customers are often interested in knowing how STEALTH can confidently warranty our work. 
  
Let’s start with a look at our concealment panels. The panels use durable, reinforced plastic or fiberglass skins.  
These materials are impervious to water and weather elements, but require protection from UV degradation.  Every 
panel is factory coated inside and out with an industrial grade urethane paint that provides UV protection and is 
easily touched up or repainted with latex paints without adhesion promoters. 
  
The concealment panels are typically supported by structural fiberglass (generally referred to as FRP – Fiberglass 
Reinforced Plastic) framing members.  FRP is specifically designed not to corrode, rot, rust, or warp, making it the 
ideal framing material for RF-sensitive designs where structural steel is not an option. 
  
STEALTH has installed sites in many corners of the globe, and high performance across various climate types is a 
key objective. Many of our sites are over a decade old, and continue to withstand harsh weather conditions.  We do, 
however, recommend owners inspect their sites regularly and budget for ongoing maintenance.  
  
A comprehensive maintenance review should include visual inspection of all concealment components, 
inspection/tightening of all fasteners and repainting exposed surfaces as required to maintain the UV protective 
barrier.  Panel attachment fasteners should be snug to the panel, but not over-tightened. This allows for expansion 
and contraction of the materials over time and reduces stresses at the attachment points. 
  
Our goal is always to deliver high-quality concealment systems that stand the test of time. 
 
 
STEALTH® Concealment Solutions, Inc. 
Telephone: 800-755-0689 
www.stealthconcealment.com 
 
 

 

http://www.stealthconcealment.com/


ExistingExisting

Proposed

 Contact ( 925 ) 202-8507

Proposed Verizon
Installation 

278749 Historic Nevada City
109 North Pine Street, Nevada City, CA

Photosims Produced on 5-18-2015

278749 Historic Nevada City
109 North Pine Street, Nevada City, CA

Photosims Produced on 5-18-2015

view from Broad Street looking north at site 



ExistingExisting

Proposed

 Contact ( 925 ) 202-8507

Proposed Verizon
Installation 

278749 Historic Nevada City
109 North Pine Street, Nevada City, CA

Photosims Produced on 7-6-2015

278749 Historic Nevada City
109 North Pine Street, Nevada City, CA

Photosims Produced on 7-6-2015

view from Broad Street looking north at site 



ExistingExisting

Proposed

 Contact ( 925 ) 202-8507

Proposed Verizon
Installation 

278749 Historic Nevada City
109 North Pine Street, Nevada City, CA

Photosims Produced on 7-6-2015

278749 Historic Nevada City
109 North Pine Street, Nevada City, CA

Photosims Produced on 7-6-2015

view from Commercial Street looking east at site 



ExistingExisting

Proposed

 Contact ( 925 ) 202-8507

Proposed Verizon
Installation 

278749 Historic Nevada City
109 North Pine Street, Nevada City, CA

Photosims Produced on 5-18-2015

278749 Historic Nevada City
109 North Pine Street, Nevada City, CA

Photosims Produced on 5-18-2015

view from Commercial Street looking west at site 

Proposed Verizon
Installation 



ExistingExisting

Proposed

 Contact ( 925 ) 202-8507

278749 Historic Nevada City
109 North Pine Street, Nevada City, CA

Photosims Produced on 7-6-2015

278749 Historic Nevada City
109 North Pine Street, Nevada City, CA

Photosims Produced on 7-6-2015

view from Commercial Street looking west at site 

Proposed Verizon
Installation 

Proposed Verizon
Installation 



ExistingExisting

Proposed

 Contact ( 925 ) 202-8507

Proposed Verizon
Installation 

278749 Historic Nevada City
109 North Pine Street, Nevada City, CA

Photosims Produced on 7-6-2015

278749 Historic Nevada City
109 North Pine Street, Nevada City, CA

Photosims Produced on 7-6-2015

view from North Pine Street looking south at site 

Proposed Verizon
Installation 



                               City of Nevada City 
 
 
 
TO:     Planning Commission 
 
FROM:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
   Dawn Zydonis, Parks & Recreation Supervisor 
 
HEARING DATE:  January 21, 2016 
 
RE:  Design Recommendation: Sugarloaf Master Plan 
 
ACTIONS REQUESTED 
Review and provide direction to City Council for the Draft Sugarloaf Mountain Master Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  In May 2011, the City Council reviewed and accepted a Master 
Plan for Sugarloaf Mountain (attached).  The Plan was written quickly as a requirement for acquiring 
funding from the County of Nevada to purchase the Sugarloaf Mountain property.  City staff felt that 
some information was missing from the plan if it were to be used as a tool to guide the City’s decision 
making regarding the property.  While the Recreation Committee existed, the topic of the Sugarloaf 
Mountain Master Plan was discussed at seven meetings.  At those meetings, a Vision Statement was 
created, and detailed discussions about history and preservation took place.   
 
City staff led a special City Council meeting on December 8, 2015 as a workshop for public input on 
the developing Master Plan. The notes from that meeting are attached to this staff report.  Everyone 
who attended the meeting had the opportunity to write their ideas on flip chart paper related to 
development, uses of the property, rules and regulations, and management of the property.  After 
reviewing all of the suggested items that were written down, each person was able to put a sticker dot 
next to the three items that they felt should be a top priority for the City.  The number of dots next to 
each item is included on the attached lists.  The four items that received the most dots were: 
 

1. Connectivity to town, bike lanes, sidewalk or trails (12 dots) 
2. Minimal uses/minimal impacts/this is zoned open space (10 dots) 
3. Would prefer no bathroom, no picnic tables, benches okay (7 dots) 
4. Mountain bike trails (7 dots) 

 
In addition, it should be noted that there were strong feelings about how mountain bikes should use the 
property.  Some felt there should be bike trails from the top to bottom of property, some felt that there 
should be separate bike and hike trails, and some felt bikes should stay on the lower periphery of the 
property.  These items are addressed in the Draft Master Plan on page 5. 
 
At that same workshop, the following suggestions were made as potential rules for the property and are 
not already posted rules or included in ordinance 12.12.070 (the ordinances for Hirschman’s Pond 
property). 

1. No bicycles: Refer to page 5 of the Draft Master Plan.  
2. Provide bags for dog clean up: The City has made a practice of providing dog bags in City 

parks and on trails. 

 
City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

 



Sugarloaf MP 
Jan. 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 
 

3. No lights: Refer to policy #8 in the Goals and Policies Section of the Draft Master Plan on page 
9. 

4. NO rentals for special events: Refer to policy #4 in the Goals and Policies Section of the Draft 
Master Plan on page 9. 

5. No parking in E. Broad/N. Pine neighborhood:  It is unclear how this would be enforced.  If 
any trails are developed on the property, trail users should be encouraged to park in a more 
appropriate location. 

6. Abide by city/county noise ordinances: The Sugarloaf Mountain property is being annexed into 
City limits.  All City ordinances will be enforced.  In the case of noise ordinance, the City’s 
code is more restrictive than the county’s.  No special events will be permitted on the property, 
so no amplified music or large group noise should take place.  No maintenance work on the 
property shall begin prior to 7:00 a.m. and will end before sunset. 

Information from all of these meetings, along with the 2011 Master Plan were used to create the 
attached Draft Sugarloaf Mountain Master Plan.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: None. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. 2011 Master Plan 
2. December 8, 2015 Workshop Notes 
3. 2016 Draft Sugarloaf Master Plan 

 
  
 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



MANAGEMENT 

Minimal uses/minimal impacts/ this is zoned open space (10 dots) 

Reduce Fire Fuels (5 dots) 

Native plant inventory/California Native Plant Society (CNPS) (4 dots) 

Find way to provide good maps – on the websites, etc. for trails (3 dots) 

City or volunteer stewardship (ie: Land Trust) (2 dots) 

No camping/control illegal camping (1 dot) 

Manage invasive species especially scotch broom 

Considerate to wildlife 

Create as destination trail with maps available in town to show visitors – use as an amenity 

Attachment 2



DEVELOPMENT 

Connectivity to town, bike lanes, sidewalk or trails (12 dots) 

Would prefer no bathroom, no picnic tables, benches okay (7 dots) 

Mountain biking trails (7 dots) 

Separate bike & hiking trails/trails for slower moving trail users (6 dots) 

Some hiking trails, but keep most of the area undeveloped (4 dots) 

Trail open to bikes from bottom to top (3 dots) 

Trail head parking for 12 cars (2 dots) 

Permit run, minimal/natural amphitheater with fire pit, view and use day or night, education, 
etc. (2 dots) 

Participatory trails that include special obstacle type exercises for kids and adults alike that help 
improve balance, coordination, etc. (neverleavetheplayground.com) (2 dots) 

Limited over-development = no pavement (2 dots) 

Hiking trails (2 dots) 

Separate trail down for mountain bikers (2 dots) 

Nothing visible from town, Hwy 49 or Hwy 20 (1 dot) 

Less is more, no permanent structures (1 dot) 

No mountain bike trail on top or face of mountain (1 dot) 

Only development: 

- Gravel parking at chain/ Designated parking spaces
- Turnouts
- Improve old trail on face slightly
- Use dirt road as main trail
- Mt. Bike at base only (periphery of property) (1 dot)
- No structures

Improve the access road to provide a descent walking trail 

Trail design that works with Fuels Reduction Plan 

Identify vision/design for possible trails and all connectivity options to (ie: Hirschman, Pioneer, 
Lake Vera) 

Keep existing dirt road as main access 

Attachment 2



Renovate existing trail 

No new trail – use old trail 

One way traffic on steep sections? (bike) 

Use United States Forest Service (USFS) for parking  

Use USFS for mountain bike parking and bathroom 

Reduce/eliminate need to park/access Sugarloaf via Coyote St. because it is dangerous 

No parking signs on Coyote St. 

Ideas to highlight and explain the views and possible historic views (signs) 

Kiosk and educational options for Nisenan and other historic and botanical, etc. 

No lights 

No development or active recreation on top 

Attachment 2



USES 

Keep uses low impact as possible (2 dots) 

Minimize picnicking – unless funding assures consistent clean-up (1 dot) 

Availability to local native peoples for events/ceremony 

Picnicking 

Education and interpretation of the Nisenan people and their traditional use of Sugarloaf: 
Nevada City Rancheria 

Educational programs – nature, hiking, conservation, plants, wildlife 

Star Gazing 

Historical Interpretation 

Nature studies 

July 4th – Fire Cannon 

Open space/view point 

Attachment 2



RULES/REGULATIONS 

Multi-use access to all users – hiking, bicycles, dogs, etc and horses? Non-motorizes (5 dots) 

No vehicles (2 dots) 

Allow police, fire access on existing road (2 dots) 

No bicycles (2 dots) 

Dogs on leash. Bags for poop (1 dot) 

No lights 

No smoking 

No rental for special events 

No camping – day use only 

No horses 

No motorized vehicles 

No parking in E. Broad/N. Pine neighborhood 

Abide by city/county noise ordinances 

Stay on trails – signs? 

Attachment 2



Sugarloaf Mountain Master Plan 
DRAFT January 2016 

Introduction 

The acquisition of Sugarloaf Mountain has been a priority for the City since the 
adoption of the City’s General Plan in 1986.  The City partnered with the State 
Parks & Recreation Department, the Nevada County Land Trust (now named Bear 
Yuba Land Trust and referred to as such throughout the rest of this document), 
the County of Nevada and Friends of Sugarloaf to make the vision of opening this 
property to the public as open space a reality.  The City acquired the Sugarloaf 
Mountain property in January 2011.  The City has taken great strides to be good 
stewards of the open space parcels they own.  This plan will provide guidelines 
and policies to continue this stewardship. 

Vision Statement 

Sugarloaf Mountain has always been an iconic backdrop to Nevada City.  The City 
maintains a vision of preserving the natural appearance of the mountain from the 
surrounding area; within and from the mountain to encourage the appreciation of 
the open space and the City.  The City hopes to preserve the environmental 
attributes of the space by reducing non-native plants, allowing native plants and 
wildlife to flourish on the current landform, and by protecting the biological 
integrity.  Passive recreational opportunities will be encouraged.  It will be 
accessible to the public for low-impact passive recreational activities. 

Background Information 

Sugarloaf Mountain is a 36 acre parcel located north of Highway 49 at 10730 
Coyote St. (APN: 36-020-26).  This parcel was acquired by the City of Nevada City 
in January 2011 with funding from the following sources: 

State of California Parks & Recreation Department – Proposition 40 funding 
County of Nevada – AB1600 funds 
The Bear Yuba Land Trust – loan to cover balance of purchase until County 
AB1600 funds were available 
Friends of Sugarloaf 

Appendix A is a map of the Sugarloaf Mountain parcel. 

Page 1 of 10 

Attachment 3



There are some use restrictions on the property due to the funds used to 
purchase the property.  The intent of the California Clean Water, Clean Air, Safe 
Neighborhood Parks, and Coastal Protection Act of 2002 (Prop. 40) is to acquire 
and develop parks and recreational areas for the purpose of land, air, and water 
conservation programs.  It is also intended to acquire, restore, preserve and 
interpret California historical and cultural resources.  The purpose of County 
AB1600 funds are to assist in meeting the park and recreation needs of Nevada 
County residents.   

This Plan takes these restrictions and intended purposes into consideration.  The 
City does not intend to use the property for purposes that would be in conflict 
with these restrictions. 

In addition, the City is in the process of annexing Sugarloaf Mountain into the 
City.  Through this process the entire 36 acre property will be zoned Open Space.  
The City’s Municipal Code states the following:  

“The purpose of Open Spaces is to provide for and encourage the creation 
and permanent maintenance of open space, both natural and landscaped 
for the purposes of maintaining and enhancing aesthetics, recreational 
opportunities, resource management, public health and safety, and 
mitigation of development.” 

Principal permitted uses, accessory uses and conditional uses are included in the 
zoning code.  Appendix B provides a full Chapter 17.56 of the Municipal Code. 

Sugarloaf Mountain is mentioned several times in the City’s General Plan – 
adopted March 24, 1986 in reference to conservation, land use and scenic 
resources. This confirms the importance of this property to the citizens of Nevada 
City.  Therefore, the care and decisions regarding this property shall be well 
thought out. 

Historical Information 

Uses of Sugarloaf Mountain prior to the gold rush days are largely unknown as 
members of the Nisenan Nevada City Rancheria tribe shared their history from 
generation to generation in the form of oral stories – not written.  Shelly Covert, 
Secretary of the Tribal Council of the Nevada City Rancheria, shared the following 

Page 2 of 10 

Attachment 3



bits of history with the Recreation Committee (August 26, 2015 meeting) as told 
to her by her grandfather.   

• The top of Sugarloaf Mountain was round before it had been “cut” off.
• The top of the mountain was used for communicating with other villages by

sending up smoke signals.  This was possible because there is a line of site
to other hills in the area.

• There was a battle with their “Camptonville Cousins” at this location.
• They called this mountain Koo’ Lăŭ.

During the gold rush days the mountain received its name because it resembled a 
loaf of coarse brown sugar, as it was processed and sold during the 19th and early 
20th centuries.  Sugarloaf Mountain was largely used as a landmark during the 
gold rush era as noted in various diaries, such as these from Harry L. Wells (1880, 
History of Nevada County) 

“Lying north of Nevada City and on the opposite (side) of Sugarloaf is Selby 
Flat, a place that was a quiet village…” 

“Tomlinson…owned some water power near Sugarloaf that he had used in 
elevation and washing dirt…” 

Commercial Uses 

Although the property has been logged many times since the area was settled, 
the Cooper Toll Road and a water delivery ditch are the only commercial uses that 
may have occurred on this property.   

Recreation Uses 

Sugarloaf Mountain was used for celebratory announcements.  In 1876 a cannon 
was fired from the summit of Sugarloaf to welcome the train which arrived on 
newly constructed rail from Colfax; through Grass Valley and into Nevada City. 

On the 4th of July it was common to shoot guns or explode dynamite atop 
Sugarloaf Mountain. 

More information about the history of Sugarloaf Mountain can be found in 
Appendix C: Sugar Loaf Nevada City’s Promontory and the Adjoining Manzanita 
Diggins Compiled by Robert M. Wyckoff, MA 

Page 3 of 10 

Attachment 3



Recent History 

A timeline of events taking place to encourage and ensure the City’s acquisition of 
Sugarloaf Mountain was provided by the Friends of Sugarloaf and is available in 
Appendix D.   

Purpose 

This Master Plan is intended to serve as a consensus-building document 
expressing general guidelines for amenities, programs, and management 
practices of the Sugarloaf Mountain property.  Projects and development would 
be dependent upon availability of funding and completion of detailed 
environmental impact studies and public review.  It is intended to suggest ways of 
precluding development that is inconsistent with the Vision for the property.   

Current Property Uses and Development 

There are trails on the property which have existed for many years by non-
permitted, non-structured users.  Since Sugarloaf Mountain is public property, 
these trails are open for the public to use.   

A maintenance and emergency road begins at Coyote St. (see Appendix E: 
Easement Deed) and twists around the property to the top of Sugarloaf 
Mountain.  This maintenance drive also serves as a walking trail to access the top 
of the property.   

Three (3) benches have been approved for placement on the property through 
the process of the City’s “Policy for Placement of Items in City Parks and Open 
Space”.  Those three benches are in place at the top of Sugarloaf Mountain and 
are used for picnicking and enjoying the surrounding views. 

No other development is in process or has been approved at this time. 

Possible Future Property Uses and Development 

The following suggestions are ideas that are proposed for the property, but would 
need sufficient funding, completion of detailed environmental impact studies and 
public review before proceeding with any projects or development mentioned 
herein. 

Page 4 of 10 

Attachment 3



Trails 

Appendix F shows potential trails that the property could connect to: 

• The Hirschman Trail to the west (red)
• The trail at Tobiassen Park to the west (purple)
• The NID trails along their ditches to the northwest (green)
• The conceptual County Trail Plan trail to the south and east (pink)

Sugarloaf Mountain could serve as an eventual side hike, if not an important 
connector of a much longer trail system.  The Western Nevada County Non-
Motorized Recreational Trails Master Plan was adopted September 21, 2010 by 
the Board of Supervisors.  The Master Trails Plan highlights the Sugarloaf 
Mountain area as a potential regional trail connection between Nevada City and 
Pioneer Trail.  Pioneer Trail begins at the Five-Mile House Restaurant on Highway 
20 and connects to Eastern Nevada County.  Pioneer Trail is heavily used by 
hikers, bikers and equestrians.  This connection would create optimum use of 
trails on Sugarloaf Mountain. 

The City conducted a workshop to receive public input for this Master Plan.  The 
top priority that came out of that workshop was that Sugarloaf Mountain provide 
connectivity to town, bike lanes, sidewalks or other trails.  Another top priority 
was mountain bike trails.  However, there was some concern about a trail shared 
by mountain bikers and hikers.  The concern with a shared trail is the difference in 
speed between the two user groups.  Development of more than one trail could 
interfere with other recommended policies included in this Master Plan that 
embrace the efforts of being “light on the land”.   It is recommended that rather 
than constructing multiple trails on the property, any trail development should 
adopt the following policies to allow for a shared trail as well as good trail 
management. 

The following policies are recommended in relation to any trail construction: 

1. All trail development should be presented to the public for review.
2. Environmental review should be completed on any trail project.
3. Trails shall be constructed at no more than 4 feet wide.  Narrow, winding

trails, like narrow, winding roads, encourage slower travel speeds.

Page 5 of 10 

Attachment 3



4. Trails should be constructed at a minimal slope to discourage excessive
speeds by bikers.  A 5% slope (5 foot drop per 100 feet of trail) is
recommended and all slopes should be below 20%.

5. The brush and tree cover along the trail route should be managed so that
the vegetation provides a visual and physical barrier to cutting switchbacks,
creating new trail routes, etc. and the trail clearing should be used to both
provide a visual barrier ahead, so that excessive speeds are discouraged, as
well as taking efforts to clear specific areas to provide a view of the trail
ahead for the safety of the user but not encourage faster speeds.

6. Use reverse grades throughout the trail route (ie: downhill trail should
reverse and become an uphill trail for 20 to 35 feet before returning to the
downhill).  This will assist with draining the trail and the uphill sections of
trail will moderate speed of trail users.

7. To minimize development and disturbance to the property there should not
be separate trails for bikers & hikers.

8. Signs at trailheads with reminders about trail etiquette.
9. Mile markers shall be placed on trails.
10. Accessibility to the property should be improved by creating parking

spaces.
11. The steep slope of the property will most likely not allow for trails that

would meet ADA requirements.  However, every effort should be made to
design trails that can be used by as many people as possible.

12. Any new trails that are considered should integrate with existing or future
regional non-motorized trails.  (See Appendix F)

13. Trails should be discrete, cleverly designed and not scar the mountain as it
is viewed from town.

14. Only trails for pedestrians and bikers should be constructed.  Equestrian
and trails for motorized vehicles are not appropriate for this property.

15. Existing trails should be mapped with attempts made to incorporate those
trails into new trail development.

It is common during trail development to include directional and interpretive 
signs.   Those signs would be reviewed with the proposal of a trail development 
project.  City Council will have final approval on all sign design and language as 
described in the Policy for Placement of Items in City Parks & Open Space. 

Page 6 of 10 

Attachment 3



Parking 

Currently there is not a safe place for the public to park when going onto the 
Sugarloaf Mountain property.  There are several options for development of 
parking spaces.  It is recommended that the parking area be driven by a trail 
project, so that parking is in a location that allows for the best access to the trail. 

A suggestion that was made at the public workshop on December 8, 2015 was 
that the City utilize the parking lot of the United States Forest Service (USFS).  This 
would require permission and possible easements from the USPS and the 
property owners.  This may be worth investigating if a proposed trail aligns with 
this parking lot. 

Bathrooms 

The second highest priority that evolved from the December 2015 Workshop was 
that there should be no bathrooms (or picnic tables) placed on Sugarloaf 
Mountain.  The City created this same policy for the Hirschman’s Pond property.  
City human and financial resources are minimal and the addition of bathrooms on 
this or other City Open Space parcels would cause additional strain on those 
limited resources.  

The disadvantage to not providing bathrooms is that the public may go “off trail” 
and create their own facilities.   

It is recommended that the City not construct bathrooms on this property.  If in 
the future, it becomes more desirable to provide such facilities, it is 
recommended that bathrooms only be constructed if there is a way to include the 
facility in a trail adoption program or other similar program to insure that 
maintenance and upkeep meet the high standards that are expected from our 
community.   If constructed, bathrooms should be located near a road or 
trailhead, not placed anywhere near the top of the mountain or visible from a 
distance.  Bathrooms should only be installed if necessary and in association with 
a trail.   

Page 7 of 10 

Attachment 3



Rules and Regulations 

The following rules and regulations are currently posted on the Sugarloaf 
property. 

1. Alcohol not allowed.

2. Property is closed dusk to dawn.

3. Camping is not allowed.

4. No Smoking.

5. Pack it in – pack it out.

6. Motorized vehicles are prohibited.

7. Due to fire danger campfires are not allowed.

8. No Firearms.

9. Dogs must be on a leash.

It is recommend that the Sugarloaf Mountain property be added to ordinance 
12.12.070 (Appendix G) 

At the December 2015 Workshop, the following suggestions were made as 
potential rules for the property and are not already posted rules or included in 
ordinance 12.12.070. 

No bicycles: Refer to the Trails section on page 5. 

Provide bags for dog clean up: The City has made a practice of providing dog bags 
in City parks and on trails. 

No lights: Refer to policy #8 in the Goals and Policies Section on page 9. 

NO rentals for special events: Refer to policy #4 in the Goals and Policies Section 
on page 9. 

No parking in E. Broad/N. Pine neighborhood:  It is unclear how this would be 
enforced.  If any trails are developed on the property, trail users should be 
encouraged to park in a more appropriate location. 

Abide by city/county noise ordinances: The Sugarloaf Mountain property is being 

Page 8 of 10 

Attachment 3



annexed into City limits.  All City ordinances will be enforced.  In the case of noise 
ordinance, the City’s code is more restrictive than the county’s.  No special events 
will be permitted on the property, so no amplified music or noise should take 
place.  No maintenance work on the property shall begin prior to 7:00 a.m. and 
will end before sunset. 

Goals and Policies 

The City’s General Plan states, “A goal of the City is to preserve its strong sense of 
entry and the sense of a distinct city surrounded by green, wooded hills.  A joint 
city-county effort should be made to preserve the forested part of Nevada City’s 
historic setting.”  It also states that the City should “Preserve the existing 
impression of a historic town surrounded by open forest... [and] preserve and 
enhance the important natural features, e.g., Sugarloaf…”  In addition at the 
December 2015 Workshop, a top priority was that there be minimal uses and 
minimal impacts. 

The following policies will help to insure that Sugarloaf Mountain is preserved for 
future generations to enjoy. 

1. Avoid any land disturbance such as major grading and/or tree removal
which would cause visible scars. (City’s General Plan 1985; pg. 22)

2. Any tree removal shall adhere to the City’s tree removal policies.  The City
desires to preserve the landscape of recent history and not the historic
landscape from the gold rush era, when the property was generally bare of
vegetation from logging.

3. Prevent soil erosion and hillside scarring through control of grading,
restrictions on removal of vegetation, and limitation of development of
steep slopes. (City’s General Plan 1985; pg. 33)

4. Sugarloaf Mountain shall be a space for passive recreational opportunities
for current and future residents and visitors.  To maintain the integrity of
the peaceful open space, the City will not rent the property for special
events of any size.

5. The City will encourage schools and other groups to use City open spaces
for environmental and historical education.

Page 9 of 10 

Attachment 3



6. The City will partner with non-profit organizations for development of
recreational opportunities, ongoing fire control management of the
property and educational programs.

7. No historical artifacts, art work, statues, etc. shall be placed on the
property to ensure that the green spaces are protected and there is
minimal impact to the property.

8. The property is closed from 30 minutes after sunset to sunrise.  Therefore
no lighting should be placed on the property.

Management Practices 

The City adopted a Hazardous Fuels Reduction Plan on October 28, 2015.  
(Appendix H) The plan identifies the types of fire fuels that should be removed 
from the property and how to remove them to reduce the risk of wildfire.  The 
benefits of reducing hazardous fuels include: 

1. Reduction of wildfire risk
2. Opening up the landscape for better views
3. Invasive, non-native plants prevent native plants from being established on

the site
4. Native plants provide food and shelter for native wildlife; non-native plants

may exclude plants that provide valuable food and shelter
5. Invasive, non-native plants are costly to maintain as they aggressively

invade public use areas (trails, parking areas, gathering areas, etc.)

Page 10 of 10 

Attachment 3


	PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA THURSDAY, January 21 2016 1:30 PM
	Mission Statement
	HEARING FROM THE PUBLIC: Comments on items not on the agenda are welcome and are limited to three minutes.  However, action or discussion by the Commission may not occur at this time.
	SIGN APPLICATION
	ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW
	DESIGN RECOMMENDATION
	TRAINING / DISCUSSION:
	City Planner Reports - informational only and no action will be taken
	CORRESPONDENCE:
	109 N. Pine Street PC SR wAttachments.pdf
	Att 2-Prelim PLans.pdf
	A-0
	C-1
	Historic Hevada City
	Layout1


	A-1
	A-2.1
	A-2.2
	A-3
	A-4.1
	A-4.2
	A-5
	A-6





